ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 1, 2012
8:04 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present.

COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 169

"An Act providing for education funding for distance delivery

courses offered by a school district.”
- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 169

SHORT TITLE: FUNDI NG FOR DI STANCE DELI VERY EDUCATI ON
SPONSOR(s) : EDUCATI ON

01/ 20/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 20/ 12 (S) EDC, FIN
02/ 01/ 12 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

MURRAY RI CHMOND, st aff

Senat or Joe Thomas

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 169.

BERNI SE JOSEPH, Vi ce Chancel |l or

Col | ege of Rural and Community Devel opnent
Uni versity of Al aska- Fair banks

Fai r banks, Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 1,

2012



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 169.

DANI EL SOLI E, Assistant Professor

Col | ege of Rural and Community Devel opnent
Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 169.

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director

School Fi nance

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Neutral on SB 169, responded to questions.

LES MORSE, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Neutral on SB 169, responded to questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:04: 03 AM

COCHAIR JOE THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stevens, Co-Chair Thomas and Co-
Chair Meyer.

SB 169- FUNDI NG FOR DI STANCE DELI VERY EDUCATI ON

8:04: 39 AM
CO- CHAI R THOVAS announced the consi derati on of SB 169.

CO-CHAIR THOWVAS, bill sponsor, said SB 169 would provide
education funding through distance delivery for students who do
not have access to courses needed for the Alaska Performance
Schol arshi p (APS)

8:05: 26 AM

MURRAY RICHMOND, staff to Senator Thomas, co-aide to Senate
Education Conmittee, said some high schools are not able to
offer courses required for APS qualification. He said the
Department of Education and Early Developnent (DEED) and the
University of Alaska (UA) have worked on distance delivery
pr ogr amns. He said UA's College of Rural and Comunity
Devel opnent (CRCD) offers distance delivery prograns for
students to take dual-credit classes that count towards high
school graduation, APS qualification and college credit. He said

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 1, 2012



the CRCD currently offers 292 technical preparation and dual -
credit high school courses.

8:07:16 AM

MR. RICHVOND said the bill would be funded from the Base Student
Al ocation (BSA) used in the forrmula for state funding of public
education. He said the primary reason to tie into the BSA was to
mai nt ai n perpetual funding for the program

8:07:37 AM

SENATOR DAVI S joined the commttee.

8:07:50 AM

MR RICHMOND said the bill wuld change the Average Daily

Menbership (ADM used by school districts to determ ne funding
He said a distance delivery course student would be counted as a
student and a half in a district's ADM

He said high school students currently have to pay for CRCD
courses. He said tuition ranges from $430 for a three credit
math course to over $800 for a six credit science course. He
said the bill assures districts and students would not have to
pay for the cl asses.

8:10: 20 AM

MR RICHVOND said eligibility requires a distance delivery
course to be a prerequisite for APS qualification, accessed
online and offered via an accredited postsecondary institution
within the state.

He said a commttee substitute (CS) has been recommended to
further refine eligibility, primarily to discourage districts
from discontinuing courses. He said a CS would specify that a
di stance delivery course be allowed if an APS required course
was not offered onsite for two or nore years.

8:12: 53 AM

He said students would have to take onsite courses that satisfy
core curriculum requirenments prior to distance delivery course
consideration, e.g., a student nust take an onsite physics
course versus a distance delivery astronony course.

8:13:29 AM

MR, RICHVOND said the bill's fiscal note was indeterm nate until
the nunber of distance delivery course students was determnm ned.
He said the 2010 Covernor's Performance Scholarship Report
indicated that 80 secondary schools did not offer the ful

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 1, 2012



conpl emrent of mathematics and science courses required for APS
eligibility.

He said studi es have shown that high school graduates who attend
college with previous college credits tend to avoid renedial
courses and performat a higher |evel.

8:16: 24 AM
CO CHAIR THOVAS commented that further refinenents would be
required prior to determning the bill's fiscal note.

CO CHAIR MEYER asked how distance delivery courses related to
the departnent's Advanced Pl acenent (AP) courses and how cl asses
were paid for.

MR. RI CHMOND answered that schools offer and pay for AP courses.

CO CHAIR MEYER asked if an AP course was an actual class that
awar ded col | ege credits when students passed.

MR. RI CHVOND answer ed correct.

8:17:56 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER comment ed that DEED reconmended di stance delivery
progranms for rural areas when the APS was adopt ed.

SENATOR STEVENS commented that he was in favor of rural schools
having distance delivery course access. He noted nultiple UA
canpuses were located throughout the state and asked why
students living near a canpus would be required to take a
di stance delivery course.

8:19:16 AM
MR. RICHMOND answered that the bill was primarily intended for
rural students.

SENATOR STEVENS asked if there were non-rural schools that did
not offer all of the courses required for APS eligibility.

MR. RICHMOND answered that a student who takes a course at a
nearby college would not have their tuition paid for. He said
the Senator's reinbursenent concern would be addressed to allow
students to take a dual-credit course at a nearby canpus when
appl i cabl e.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS said involving nearby canpuses made sense under
certain circunstances.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 1, 2012



8:20: 36 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked to verify that the intent of the bill was
to offer courses to students who attended schools that were not
offering all of the courses required for APS eligibility.

MR. RI CHVOND answer ed correct.

SENATOR FRENCH asked to verify that school districts would be
reinbursed an additional 50 percent of BSA for a distance
delivery student.

MR. RI CHVOND answer ed correct.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the additional 50 percent of BSA would
be allocated even if a student takes one distance delivery
cour se.

MR RI CHVOND answer ed correct.

8:22: 06 AM

SENATOR FRENCH comented that the funding fornmulation seens to
give a strong incentive to push students to distance delivery
courses that cost under $500 while district reinbursenent would
be several thousand doll ars.

MR RICHMOND answered that "one size fits all"™ funding for
tuition ranging from $430 to $2500 coul d be an issue.

SENATOR FRENCH commented that he knew how difficult it was to
wite down the wide variety of experiences that rural school
districts faced. He said children from smaller conmunities
deserved the exact sane chance that students in larger districts
had to qualify for APS.

MR. RICHVMOND said the intent was to provide rural districts with
a sinplified funding system

CO CHAIR THOVAS commented that the intent would be how to refine
funding that reflects actual costs versus strictly fornula
driven.

8:23:27 AM

BERNI SE JOSEPH, Vice Chancellor, College of Rural and Comrunity
Devel opnent, University of Al aska-Fairbanks, Fairbanks, said
there were 15 conmmunity canpuses in the UA systemw th six under
the UAF-CRCD authority. She said CRCD dual-credit courses

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 1, 2012



provided a great head-start for high school students to both
earn college credits and neet graduation requirenents.

She said 548 rural students graduated in 2011 from schools with
less than 11 graduates. She said dual-credit courses were
offered interactively via internet to rural secondary students.
She noted that sone regions' high school math teachers have
received additional CRCD training to better assist students.

8:28:31 AM

M5. JOSEPH said UA tuition costs are a barrier for rural
students. She said rising heating costs was having a nmjor
i mpact on rural fam |y budgets.

8:29: 36 AM

DANI EL SOLIE, Assistant Professor, Coll ege of Rural and
Community Devel opnent, University of Al aska Fairbanks, said
students from small schools are often at a disadvantage wth
mat h and science preparation. He said the dual-credit course was
devel oped to inprove rural students in math and science for
col | ege.

He said the key to success was real-tinme interaction between
student and instructor with a focus on problem solving. He said
CRCD courses were tailored to fit the lifestyle of students from
rural Alaska with colloquial |anguage used in subject matter to
make courses relevant and interesting.

8:32:43 AM
MR. SCLIE said CRCD courses were structured with flexibility to
take rural issues into account, e.g., hunting season, wnter

school closings and regional graduation schedules. He said an
important part of the distance science program was a |aboratory
kit provided to students to create a real experience outside of
the online training.

8:34: 47 AM

He said reusable lab kits cost approximately $500 and were grant
funded. He said students received additional support from online
classmates and visiting itinerant teachers. He noted that an
itinerant teacher also worked with other students to foster nore
interest in science.

He said distance delivery courses had no boundary limts and he

noted that successful nodules from one course could be used in
ot her cour ses.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 1, 2012



8: 38: 53 AM

MR. SOLIE said he encouraged groups of students in a particular
school to take distance delivery courses to reduce the overall
cost and nmake the funding nodel nore effective. He said many
rural schools can only offer certain courses once every two or
three years and noted that sonme courses were not at the |eve
needed to prepare students to transition into coll ege.

8:40: 29 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked why sonme districts paid for high school
students taking dual-credit courses and others were not.

8:41:41 AM
M5. JOSEPH answered that no two districts were alike. She said
the Northwest Artic Borough used a "one third nodel;" the

student, school district and CRCD each paid one third of the
cost. She said sone districts split the dual-credit cost wth
t he student.

8:.42.: 47 AM

SENATOR STEVENS commented that he would like to find out the
fiscal issues related to districts that paid for students taking
col | ege courses and those that did not.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS said the chall enge was finding out what prograns
were avail able, how they would be delivered, what the costs were
and how the program coul d be expanded.

8:44: 35 AM
MR. SOLIE said the variability of paynent for students was an
issue and leveling the paynent field for all students was
i mportant.

COCHAIR THOVAS asked that the CRCD and districts provide
additional input on funding. He said a real challenge would be
t he physi cal aspect of establishing connection with rural areas.

8:47:24 AM

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director of School Finance, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, Juneau, said the departnent's
foundation formula distributes funding to districts as
di scretionary funding in one pot of noney. She said funding does
not follow a student and the challenge would be how to follow a
student with categorical funding.

8:48:43 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 1, 2012



LES MORSE, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent, Juneau, said AP courses were offered by
districts and noted that additional training was required for AP
teachers. He said AP students paid for their test fees.

8:50: 23 AM

SENATOR STEVENS comrented that foundation forrmula funding was
di scretionary and not fair. He said the costs associated with a
speci al education student versus a regular academ c student were
not equal. He said districts were responsible for making sure
students had access to the classes they required. He said he
would be concerned if a district's responsibility to their
students was di m ni shed.

8:51:22 AM

CO CHAIR MEYER said there has always been a concern with rural
schools not providing students with an opportunity to qualify
for the APS. He asked what the departnment would suggest if the
di stance delivery course programwas not used.

8:52: 01 AM

MR. MORSE answered that the departnent contacted superintendents
from 13 districts that did not have APS eligible graduates in
2011. He said the superintendents commented that limted course
avai lability was not an issue.

He said the departnment was about to introduce a distance
delivery option through the Al aska Learning Network (ALN). He
said the intent for the ALN was to provide access to advanced
courses for APS qualification. He said ALN should not be the
only solution and recommended additional prograns to augnent the
APS qualification process.

8:55: 07 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER commented that he wanted to make sure there was a
mechanism in place to guarantee all students receive equal

opportunities for the APS wi thout an additional program

SENATOR FRENCH asked rhetorically how every Alaskan student
woul d be assured a fair chance for an APS. He said the ALN
sounds |like a good idea and asked what entity would provide
course material for ALN.

8:55:59 AM

MR. MORSE answered that the departnent was involved wth
designing courses with a goal to offer 30 ALN courses within two
years. He said an outside vendor provided initial program

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 1, 2012



content with Alaska teachers hired to present the ALN courses.
He said the first course offered on ALN was produced from an
existing Alaska Studies course from the Anchorage Schoo
District.

8:57: 09 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked how students woul d access ALN courses.

MR. MORSE answered that ALN would be offered via online, live
video or e-learning nodules. He said certified teachers woul d be
avai l abl e to answer questi ons.

8:58: 32 AM

SENATOR FRENCH comented that ALN was going in the right
direction. He said he would have preferred using UA for the
initial ALN programm ng, but conceded that an outside vendor may
have been nore cost effective. He said 548 rural students need
hel p and spendi ng $1000 a year per student was not a huge anount
of noney. He said the hope was that every Al aska high school
student had access to qualify for APS by the end of the year. He
said you cannot offer the APS and not offer the courses to
qualify.

8:59: 37 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said he wanted to correct a prior statenent
where he stated foundation funding per student was "not fair,"
he neant "not equitable.” He said in a perfect world foundation
funding would cover cost discrepancies between individua
students and was hopeful that the proposed BSA increase would
help. He said in principal, distance delivery course funding
bel onged in the foundation fornul a.

9:00:41 AM
CO-CHAIR THOVAS stated that he would hold SB 169 in committee
for further discussion.

9:01: 01 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Co- Chai r Thomas adjourned the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting at 9:01 a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- February 1, 2012



